
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CIL Spending  
Panel 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

Monday, 30th October, 2023 
at 1.00 pm 
 
 
 
in the 
 
 
 

Council Chamber, Town Hall and available 
for the public to view on WestNorfolkBC on 
You Tube 

 
 

 
 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/WestNorfolkBC
https://www.youtube.com/user/WestNorfolkBC


 

 
King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX 
Telephone: 01553 616200 
 
20 October 2023 
 
Dear Member 
 
CIL Spending Panel 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Task Group which will 
be held on Monday, 30th October, 2023 at 1.00 pm in the Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn, PE30 5DQ to discuss the 
business shown below. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
Chief Executive 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   
 

2.   Notes of the previous meeting   

 To agree as a correct record the minutes from the meeting held on 16 October 
2023 (to follow). 
 

3.   Matters arising   
 

4.   Declarations of interest  (Page 4) 

 Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared.  A 
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not 
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it 
relates.  If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Members should 
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed. 
 
These declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part 
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply 
observing the meeting. 
 
 



5.   Urgent Business   

 To consider any business which, by reason of special circumstances, the 
Chairman proposes to accept as urgent under Section 100b(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act, 1972. 
 

6.   Members present pursuant to Standing Order 34   

 Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the 
Chair of their intention to do so and on what items they wish to be heard 
before a decision on that item is taken. 
 

7.   Chair's correspondence (if any)   
 

8.   Identify Project Criteria and clarify application infrastructure 
requirements   
 

9.   Update Annual Funding List for 2024   
 

10.   Review Scoring Criteria and application process   
 

11.   Review decision making process   
 

12.   Review of CIL Governance & Spending Document  (Pages 5 - 58) 
 

13.   Review of CIL Funding Application Form  (Pages 59 - 70) 
 

14.   Date of next meeting   

 To be arranged. 

 
To: 
 
CIL Spending Panel: R Blunt, M de Whalley, C Joyce, J Moriarty and S Sandell 
 
 
Officers 
 
Hannah Wood-Handy, Planning Control Manager 
Amanda Driver, CIL Monitoring Officer 
Robyn Walkey, CIL Assistant  
 



 

 

            START 
 

          YES ←    → NO 

                      

                                                             YES ↙           ↓ NO 

  

                                                                                                                                            

 YES ←  

                                ↓ NO 

                       

           YES ←       

  

 ↓ NO 

                                                           ↓ YES                     ↓NO                                   

                

                                                           

                                                                                                YES   ↙               ↓ NO 

                                                                      

 YES ←   

      

  NO ← 

 

                                                                                                                         ↙ 

                                                                                        NO TO BOTH           YES TO ONE ↓ 

  

 

Does the matter directly 

relate to one of your DPIs?  

DECLARING AN INTEREST AND MANAGING 

ANY CONFLICTS FLOWCHART 

Does the matter directly 

relate to the finances or 

wellbeing of one of your ERIs? 
Declare the interest. You have 

a conflict and cannot act or 

remain in the meeting *  
Declare the interest. You have 

a conflict and cannot act or 

remain in the meeting *  

 

Does it directly relate to the 

finances or wellbeing of you, 

a relative or a close associate? 
Declare the interest. You have 

a conflict and cannot act or 

remain in the meeting * 

Does it affect the finances or 

wellbeing of you, a relative, a 

close associate or one of my 

ERIs? 

Declare the interest. Are you 

or they affected to a greater 

extent than most people? And 

would  a reasonable person 

think you are biased because 

of the interest?  

Does it relate to a Council 

Company or outside body to 

which you are appointed by 

the Council? 

* without a dispensation 
 
Glossary: 
DPI: Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest 
ERI: Extended Registrable 
Interest 

 

 

 

You have a conflict and 

cannot act or remain in 

the meeting * 

Take part 

as normal 

Does another interest make 

you that feel you cannot act 

in a fair, objective or open 

manner? Would a 

reasonable person knowing 

the same interest think you  

could not act in a fair, 

objective or open manner? 

Declare the 

interest. Do you, or 

would a reasonable 

person think there 

are competing 

interests between 

the Council and the 

company/outside 

body?  

Other actions to mitigate 
against identified conflicts: 
1. Don’t read the papers  
2. Tell relevant officers 
3. Ask to be removed from any 
email recipient chain/group 

 
 

You can remain the meeting if the Chair 

agrees, for you to speak in your external 

capacity only. Do not vote. 

You can take part in discussions but make 

clear which capacity you are speaking in. 

Do not vote.  

You have a 

conflict. Declare 

the interest. Do 

not participate and 

do not vote. 

Declare the interest for 

the sake of openness 

and transparency. Then 

take part as normal. 

4

Agenda Item 4



www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

5

Agenda Item 12



Region

11 Introduction

21.1 Statutory Requirements

21.2 What can CIL be spent on

42 Governance Arrangements

63 Applying for CIL funds

83.1 Application Essential Requirements

93.2 Consultation Requirements

104 Infrastructure Project Funding Allocation - over £30,001

114.1 The Decision Making Process for Infrastructure Projects over £30k

135 Infrastructure Project Funding Allocation between £2,000 and £30,000

14
5.1 The Decision Making Process for Infrastructure Projects between £2,000 and

£30,000

166 Once the funding decisions have been made

166.1 Project Progress Reports

176.2 Project Completion

176.3 Monitoring and Review

207 Appendix 1 - CIL Annual List of Infrastructure Projects

218 Appendix 2 - CIL Governance Framework

239 Appendix 3 - Infrastructure Projects Application Scoring Criteria

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_2023

Contents

6



1 Introduction

1.0.1 The Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk approved the introduction of
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in December 2016 and started charging on 15
February 2017.

1.0.2 CIL is paid to the Borough Council by developers after their planning permissions
are implemented.

1.0.3 CIL is governed by the CIL Regulations 2010 (amended). In the Borough of King's
Lynn and West Norfolk, CIL is charged on all residential and retail developments, which add
one or more new dwelling(s) or more than 100sqm of floor space.

1.0.4 CIL is charged at a rate per square metre and varies according to land use.

1.0.5 CIL is just one funding stream that can be used, in conjunction with others, to fund
infrastructure projects. Alongside CIL, S106 obligations will still exist, but generally as one-off
agreements to mitigate the impacts of larger developments and to secure on-site developer
requirements, such as the provision of affordable housing. Examples of how infrastructure
projects can be funded can be seen in Figure 1.

1.0.6 This document details the governance arrangements in place at the Borough Council
of King's Lynn and West Norfolk, for the allocation and spending of CIL.

1.0.7 The original parameters for the governance arrangements of CIL were agreed at
Cabinet on 17 August 2020.

1.0.8 The governance arrangements will be reviewed on an annual basis, to meet the
Corporate Objectives and Priorities, by Cabinet.

1CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

7



1.0.9 This document is based on the 7 'Appendix 1 - CIL Annual List of Infrastructure
Projects'and is applicable for the financial year 2023/2024

1.0.10 The spending priorities (as aligned to the Corporate Business Plan) will be reviewed
on an annual basis.

1.1 Statutory Requirements

1.1.1 Under CIL, the Borough Council will act as the designated Charging Authority.

1.1.2 As a Charging Authority the Council has an obligation to:

Prepare and publish the CIL Charging Schedule
Determine CIL spend, ensuring it is used to fund the provision, improvement, replacement,
operation or maintenance of infrastructure to support development of its area
Report on the amount of CIL revenue collected, spent and retained each year.

1.1.3 The Council are required under The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment)
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019, to produce a statement of the infrastructure projects or
types of infrastructure which the Council intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded
by CIL.

1.1.4 This is referred to as the Community Infrastructure Levy List of Infrastructure Projects
and replaces the Regulation 123 list (R123 list).

1.1.5 CIL money collected may only be allocated to and spent on these types of
infrastructure.

1.1.6 The Borough Council's Annual List of Infrastructure Projects and Annual Infrastructure
Funding Statement detailing CIL receipts, balances and expenditure for each financial year
c a n b e f o u n d o n t h e C o u n c i l ' s C I L
webpages at https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports.

1.2 What can CIL be spent on

1.2.1 CIL Regulations set the context for the spending of CIL funds on infrastructure. The
regulations encourage the accumulation of CIL funds into a 'pot'.

1.2.2 Unlike other obligations or charges, CIL spending does not need to be directly related
to the donor development and can address infrastructure needs in general across the Borough
Council's administrative area.

1.2.3 The key points set out by the CIL Regulations and Guidance relating to CIL funding
are:

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_20232

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

8

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports.


CIL should be spent on infrastructure including: roads and other transport, schools
and other education, community facilities, health, sport / recreation and open
spaces
The infrastructure funded must support the development of the area
CIL can be used to increase the capacity of existing infrastructure or to repair
failing infrastructure, if needed to support development
CIL and Section 106 should not be secured to fund the same infrastructure project e.g.
Social/Affordable Housing

1.2.4 As per the CIL Regulations and Guidance, CIL is proportioned and allocated using
the following approach:

5% is retained by the Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk to cover
administrative costs (including consultation on the levy charging schedule, enforcing
CIL, legal costs and reporting on CIL activity)
15%, known as the Neighbourhood Allocation, is established for spending within the
neighbourhood of contributing development (up to a maximum of £100 per existing
Council Tax dwelling). This allocation can either be transferred to the relevant Parish
Council or retained by the Borough Council to be spent on neighbourhood projects where
the development is not in a Parish. This allocation rises to 25% when a Parish has a
Neighbourhood Plan in place.
80%, known as the CIL Infrastructure Fund, is retained by the Borough Council, to
allocate to projects in accordance with the Council's Infrastructure List, which is reviewed
annually, and in line with the agreed CIL Governance arrangements.

For example:

If £1,000 is received it would be distributed as follows:

Where 1% = £10
5% Admin = £50
15% (without Neighbourhood Plan) = £150 or 25% (with Neighbourhood Plan) Parish
Payment = £250
the remaining sum is placed in the CIL Infrastructure fund 80% = £800 or 70% (with
Neighbourhood Plan) = £700

It is very unlikely that CIL will generate enough funds to completely cover the cost of new
infrastructure needed to fully support planned development. As such, there will be competing
demands for this funding. With this in mind, it is important to ensure that there are robust,
accountable and democratic structures in place to ensure the spending of CIL funds are
prioritised in the right way.

1.2.5 The sections that follow set out the Governance Arrangements and approach for
how decisions are made on the prioritisation and spend of the CIL Infrastructure Fund.

3CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

9



2 Governance Arrangements

2.0.1 The CIL Infrastructure Fund has been separated into 2 specific project types, to
enable the funding to meet wider borough infrastructure requirements and also to support
local community needs.

2.0.2 The estimated annual income of CIL is 1 million pounds which would be split as
follows;

Infrastructure Projects over £30,001

These are projects which require the most amount of CIL funding
The Infrastructure Projects will be in excess of £30,001 and be fully match funded

Infrastructure Projects up to £30,000

These are projects which will meet the needs of Parishes and Wards, to fund smaller
local projects between £2,000 and £30,000
It is expected that there will be an element of match funding for these projects.

All projects must:

start within 1 year, from when funding is formally allocated and;
be completed within 5 years, or as stated on the funding application.

2.0.3 In order to aid the organisation, checking and decision making, the Borough Council
has set up a CIL Spending Panel.

CIL Spending Panel

2.0.4 The CIL Spending Panel is formed from elected Councillors and assisted by Officers
and reports to the BCKLWN Management Team and Cabinet.

2.0.5 The CIL Spending Panel:

reviews the funding applications received
makes recommendations for suitable project spending
monitors project spend and progress.

The Spending Panel have the ability to transfer funds within the project groups, up to a
maximum of 10% of the available CIL Funding available.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_20234

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

10



Criteria for Funding Selection

2.0.6 The Spending Panel will review each application and base their decision on the
following:

2.0.7 Project Scoring

filter the projects based on BC Officers' scoring
prioritise the projects with the highest scoring;

2.0.8 When there are more project applications, than CIL Funding available, the Spending
Panel will take into consideration:

the amount of development in the relevant area, based on planning application history, to
identify need for infrastructure
the amount of CIL Funding already received relating to the area and/or project, to allow
funding to be allocated to areas with less funding

2.0.9 CIL Fund Transfers

2.0.10 Each project group is allocated a percentage of the CIL Income, as identified within
this Governance document.

2.0.11 There may be occasions when funding applications exceed the amount of funding
available. An over subscription may relate to only 1 project group or to all project groups.

2.0.12 The Spending Panel will review the funding needs, taking into account the funding
allocated to all project groups.

2.0.13 When there is not enough CIL funding within a project group to meet the application
submissions, the Spending Panel may agree to transfer funding of up to 10% from a different
project group with less need, based on the considerations listed above.

2.0.14 The Panels role in the Governance Framework, is shown in Appendix 2 - 8 'Appendix
2 - CIL Governance Framework'

2.0.15 The current list of eligible spending is detailed in sections 4 and 5. These may
change in subsequent years.

2.0.16 Cabinet will review and decide on amended priorities, as appropriate, on an annual
basis.

5CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

11



3 Applying for CIL funds

3.0.1 Annually, the Borough Council will publicise the amount of CIL funding collected.

3.0.2 The Council will encourage the submission of Expression of Interest Forms, requesting
CIL funding.

3.0.3 Key internal and external stakeholders responsible for delivering the infrastructure
identified in the Council's Infrastructure List will receive direct notification of the opportunity
to request CIL funding.

3.0.4 The stakeholders automatically notified will be:

Internal Departments within BCKLWN
Norfolk County Council
Parish and Town Councils within the Borough
All BCKLWN Councillors

3.0.5 Information about the opportunity will also be available on the Council's website.

3.0.6 The allocation of these funds will be made through an 'Expression of Interest' process.

3.0.7 A diagrammatic summary of the governance framework for CIL is set out in Appendix
1, which shows the spending and reporting arrangements that are in place.

3.0.8 Expression of Interests will be made on a standard online template, issued by the
Borough Council.

3.0.9 The application form will request key information about the project, including:

1. Description and details of the project
2. Purpose of the project and its benefit to the community
3. Financial details:

Expected expenditure which must include:

a. summary of proposed costs
b. details of quotes, to demonstrate that the funding request has been researched
c. Amount of CIL funding requested - £
d. Details of any match funding

4. Any other supporting information e.g. Project Report and Timescales.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_20236

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

12



The Borough will set a timescale for the submission of applications, which will be
published on our webpages.

The decision making process, as detailed in Appendix 2, will commence after the application
deadline has ended, to:

ensure that all projects are reviewed fairly and transparently
give each project the same opportunity for funding

BCKLWN Linked Funding Applications

To ensure transparency, any application made on behalf of the BCKLWN or subsidiary
organisation, will be passed to the Cabinet for scrutiny as part of the decision making process.
This will apply to all funding applications from any project group.

7CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

13



3.1 Application Essential Requirements

Bodies applying for funds, will need to demonstrate that they are properly constituted,
and reflect appropriate national policies e.g. Equality, Safe Guarding andDiscrimination.

3.1.1 It is expected that project sustainability has been considered, prior to applying for
funding, to ensure the continued success of the project on completion.

3.1.2 In order for a project to be considered for CIL funding, the following eligibility
criteria needs to be met:

The Application Form has been completed satisfactorily
The project must meet at least one of the criteria, as detailed in the Annual Infrastructure
List.
The organisation must have the legal right to carry out the proposed project
The proposed projectwill not provide a financial advantage, to benefit a commercial
or private business.

The project is clearly defined as 'Infrastructure',as per the CIL Regulations

The Project must:

commence within 1 year of being allocated CIL
andbe completed within 5 years.

Applications should not include a schedule of ongoing costs, to maintain the project, once it
has been completed.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_20238

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

14



3.2 Consultation Requirements

3.2.1 As part of the application process, it is essential to consult with local community
groups.

3.2.2 Areas in the Borough with a Local Council (Town or Parish Council):

Applicationsmust be made in liaison with the relevant Local Council, this is to ensure:

that the project meets the communities needs,
they are given the opportunity to offer their support to the project,
may provide an opportunity of match funding from either the Parish Precept or CIL Parish
payment, where appropriate.

3.2.3 Unparished areas within the Borough:

Where no Local Council is present, it would be beneficial for applicants to liaise with
the local community group, usually identified as 'Parish Meeting'.
Where there is no community group, applicants are advised to seek support from
their local elected member(s).

3.2.4 Applicants may also wish to liaise with local elected members.

3.2.5 Details of local councils and elected members can be found on the BCKLWN
Democratic Services website.

9CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

15



4 Infrastructure Project Funding Allocation - over £30,001

4.0.1 50% of the CIL Infrastructure Funds will be allocated to projects requesting funding
of over £30,001

4.0.2 Projects over £30k will be selected, by in line with the CIL Governance arrangements,
with more weight given to areas with significant development taking place.

4.0.3 Allocations for spending on infrastructure, will be made to projects in accordance
with the Council's adopted CIL Infrastructure List.

These Projects must:

commence within 1 year of being allocated CIL
and be completed within 5 years.

4.0.4 The Infrastructure list will be reviewed annually and updated to reflect the changing
needs within the Borough.

The current list of Infrastructure Projects eligible for funding over £30k,
are:

18+ Adult Education Infrastructure Projects

To support the development of skills for adults of all ages, which may include: volunteer
run projects to allow people to gain new skills, knowledge and experience.

Green Infrastructure Projects

Projects relating to open spaces, such as public parks and gardens, woodlands, fields,
hedges, lakes, ponds, coastal habitats, as well as footpaths, cycleways or rivers.
Public spaces used for recreation and education, habitats for wildlife and nature.
Environmental services such as flood defence or absorption of air pollution.

Leisure Time Activities Infrastructure-

Accessible projects, to support leisure time activities, which may include; health &
well-being schemes to encourage physical activity and playstreet initiatives.
Projects run by community/voluntary groups including Local Councils, to promote social
inclusion.
Active living projects; to increase walking, cycling and sustainable transport.

The Project selection criteria are in line with the Borough Councils Corporate Business
Plan.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202310

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

16



The Project Criteria meet the Corporate priorities and objectives:

4.0.5 Education : Improving social mobility and inclusion to work with partners to improve
education attainment levels and the skills of local people.

4.0.6 Green Infrastructure: Protecting and enhancing the environment including tackling
climate change to work with partners and the community to improve our natural environment
and creating and maintaining good quality places that make a positive difference to people’s
lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe public places and communities

4.0.7 Leisure: Improve and develop the quality of local sport and leisure facilities.

Question 1

Do you want to apply for CIL Infrastructure Project Funding?

4.0.8 If you wish to apply for CIL Project Funding, please click on the link below and
it will take you to the online form.

4.0.9 CIL Online Application Forms

4.1 The Decision Making Process for Infrastructure Projects over £30k

4.1.1 Once the Project Application Forms, requesting CIL funding, have been validated by
a Council Officer, initial scoring of the projects will then take place.

4.1.2 The factors that these Projects will be assessed against include:

the need for the project
benefit of the project
deliverability of the project
amount of development in the area of the project
proposed no of houses in the project area

4.1.3 Projects will be viewed favourably if they lever in other funds that wouldn't otherwise
be available, particularly where those funds may not be available in future years.

4.1.4 Ideally, bids should include significant sums of match funding.

4.1.5 At this stage, the Council Officer will notify Cabinet Members with specific portfolio
responsibilities and the Local Ward member(s)of proposed projects, giving an opportunity
for comment.

11CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

17

https://west-norfolk.objective.co.uk/portal/cil_folder/cilappsfy


4.1.6 The Application forms, Scoring Sheets and comments, will then be taken to the
BCKLWN Management Team to review and make a formal recommendation.

4.1.7 The Management Team are required to:

reach a balanced judgement over which projects are selected
make recommendations on which projects should receive CIL funding

consider whether there could be links to other areas of corporate or partner spending
e.g. spending on habitats (Natura 2000 sites) mitigation works.

take recommendations to the BCKLWN Cabinet for approval

4.1.8 Recommendations from the BCKLWN Management Team, will then go forward to
Cabinet.

4.1.9 If agreed by Cabinet, the application stakeholders will be informed and funds will be
allocated.

4.1.10 CIL payments up to £1,000,000 will then be signed off by a senior Council Officer.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202312

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

18



5 Infrastructure Project Funding Allocation between £2,000 and
£30,000

5.0.1 50% of the CIL Funds will be allocated to Infrastructure Projects, requesting funds
of a value between £2,000 and £30,000.

5.0.2 Projects up to £30k will be selected, by in line with the CIL Governance
arrangements, with more weight given to areas with significant match funding.

5.0.3 Allocations for spending on infrastructure, will be made to projects in accordance
with the Council's adopted CIL Infrastructure List.

5.0.4 The Infrastructure list will be reviewed annually and updated to reflect the changing
needs within the Borough.

These Projects:

must commence within 1 year of being allocated CIL
and must be completed within 5 years.

The current list of Infrastructure Projects eligible for funding up to £30k
are:

Education - Local Initiatives

To support voluntary/community projects

Health

To support NHS & voluntary services
Support & increase wellbeing services

Economic Development

To benefit the local area/wider community

Community Facilities - This may include public buildings/recreation areas:

To support voluntary/community groups
Increase facility capacity/repair existing infrastructure

Green Infrastructure

To reduce carbon emissions
Support & protect biodiversity - wildlife friendly sites

13CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

19



Open Space and Leisure

Installation & improvement of public play areas and equipment
Improvement of open spaces
Support voluntary/community leisure facilities

CIL will be paid on completion of the project.

These Projects are in line with the Borough Councils Corporate Business Plan.

The Project Criteria meet the Corporate priorities and objectives:

Education - Improving social mobility and inclusion to work with partners to improve
education attainment levels and the skills of local people.
Health - Improving social mobility and inclusion by continuing to assist our residents to
maximise their opportunities by accessing the support and services they are entitled to.
Economic Development - Delivering growth in the economy and with local housing
to promote the borough as a vibrant place in which to live, to do business and as a
leading visitor and cultural destination.
Community Facilities - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a
positive difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe
public places and communities.
Green Infrastructure- Helping to improve the health and well being of our communities
by supporting our local communities to be healthy and more active
Open Space and Leisure - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a
positive difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe
public places and communities and help to improve the health and well being of our
communities

Do you want to apply for CIL Infrastructure Project Funding?

If you wish to apply for the CIL Project Funding , please click on the link below
and it will take you to the online form.

CIL Online Application Form

5.1 TheDecisionMaking Process for Infrastructure Projects between £2,000 and £30,000

5.1.1 Once the Infrastructure Project Application Forms, requesting CIL funding, have been
validated by a Council Officer, initial scoring of the projects will then take place.

5.1.2 The factors that projects will be assessed against include:

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202314

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

20

http://west-norfolk.objective.co.uk/portal/cil_folder/cilappsfy


details of expenditure, how the money will be spent
evidence of Local Council, Community meeting and elected member(s) support
evidence to demonstrate community need and support
evidence to demonstrate a commitment (financial or otherwise) to the project including
details of match funding
project timescales

5.1.3 Short term projects will be looked upon favourably, especially if the CIL can be
allocated and spent within the same financial year.

5.1.4 A Council Officer undertaking the initial scoring of the project will make a
recommendation, based on the scoring criteria.

5.1.5 At this stage, the Council Officer will produce a list of all projects received, which will
be published as an agenda item, for the CIL Spending Review Meeting.

5.1.6 All Councillors, including Portfolio Holders, will be notified of when the CIL Spending
Review Meeting will take place.

5.1.7 Any elected member may attend the CIL Spending Review meeting under Standing
Order 34.

5.1.8 The recommendations will be reviewed, by the CIL Spending Panel.

5.1.9 The CIL Spending Panel is required to:

reach a balanced judgement over which projects to select
agree on which projects will receive CIL funding

5.1.10 CIL payments up to £30,000 will then be signed off by a Senior Council Manager.

15CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

21



6 Once the funding decisions have been made

6.0.1 Once funding decisions have been made, in line with the CIL Governance process,
all applicants will be notified of the outcome.

6.0.2 Successful applications will be sent, via email, a Funding Offer Letter and formal
legal agreement, which must be signed and returned.

6.0.3 To enable funding to be formally allocated to the project, a signed agreement must
be returned and formally acknowledged by the Borough Council.

6.0.4 Where an agreement has not been returned, the funding offer will be withdrawn and
the sum reallocated as part of the next round of applications.

6.0.5 Successful applicants of CIL funding will be expected to maintain communication
with the Borough Council, on the progress of their project, after a decision has been made
to provide funding.

6.1 Project Progress Reports

6.1.1 We require the following information, during the progress of the project, which
must include:

1. Notification when the project starts:
A project may be started in several ways, such as the commencement of physical works,
starting the tender process or securing contracts relating to the project.

2. An annual report must be submitted at the end of each financial year:
The annual report will need to provide information on the progress of each scheme that
funding has been allocated to, until such time that the project is completed.

3. Regular updates on the progress of the project, until it is completed.
4. Notification of potential delays.

As funding is allocated based on the scoring of project timescales, it is important to let
us know if the project is not expected to be completed as stated on the application. If
the project is going to take longer, there is a requirement to request a variation to the
original timescale. Any requests will be reviewed by the CIL Spending Panel.

6.1.2 The requirement to submit this information, forms part of the agreement that the
successful applicant is required to sign between themselves and the Borough Council of
King's Lynn and West Norfolk.

6.1.3 If an applicant does not spend CIL money within five years of receipt, or does
not spend it as agreed then the Borough Council may require the applicant to repay
some or all of those funds.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202316

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

22



6.2 Project Completion

6.2.1 Where funding has been allocated 'in principle' or where staged payments are agreed,
the scheme applicant will be expected to provide information to justify funding being
transferred. The evidence of completion must include:

Original Invoices- to demonstrate expenditure
Photographs of completed project - to demonstrate completion and also for publicity
purposes
In some cases, to enable the project to progress, planning permission may be required.
If this is the case, other relevant evidence may include:
Written Statement of completion
Planning Approval/Building Control Completion Notices - to demonstrate adherence to
statutory obligations

6.2.2 Applicants should continue to provide information, until the scheme has been
completed and all CIL funding has been spent.

6.3 Monitoring and Review

6.3.1 The Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk is committed to ensuring the
use of CIL is open and transparent.

List of CIL Funded Projects

The Borough Council will publish a list of all projects that have been allocated CIL funding
on our website.

Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement

In line with the CIL Regulations, as amended in September 2019, the Borough Council will
publish an Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement.

This report will provide details of CIL and also S106:

receipts
balances
expenditure
allocations.
will be published on our website annually, for each financial year, no later than 31
December.

6.3.2 The published reports can be found on the CIL Financial Reports webpages
at:https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports

17CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

23

https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports


Annual List of Infrastructure Projects

6.3.3 The Council are required under The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment)
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019, to produce a statement of the infrastructure projects or
types of infrastructure which the Council intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded
by CIL.

6.3.4 This is referred to as the Community Infrastructure Levy 7 'Appendix 1 - CIL Annual
List of Infrastructure Projects' and replaces the Regulation 123 list (R123 list).

6.3.5 CIL money collected can only be allocated to and spent on these types of
infrastructure.

The CIL Spending Panel

6.3.6 The CIL Spending Panel will:

review the uptake of projects within the project categories, after each application deadline
has been met
monitor the operation and implementation of CIL funding
review the List of Infrastructure Projects, on an annual basis
recommend amendments to the project selection criteria
produce a Draft List of Infrastructure Projects

6.3.7 Recommendations from the CIL Spending Panel, will then go forward to Regeneration
and Development (R&D) Panel.

The Regeneration and Development (R&D) Panel

The R&D Panel is made up of Elected Members, supported by Borough Council Officers.

6.3.8 The R&D Panel will:

review the Draft List of Infrastructure Projects
reach a balanced judgement on the project criteria, taking into consideration Corporate
Priorities

make recommendations to Cabinet

Cabinet

6.3.9 Cabinet will:

review the recommendations
approve the Annual List of Infrastructure Projects,

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202318

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

24

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents


6.3.10 The Annual List of Infrastructure Projects will be published on the CIL Governance
and Funding webpages.

6.3.11 If you have any questions about this guidance, or CIL generally, please contact the
Borough Council's CIL Monitoring and Compliance Officer at CIL@west-norfolk.gov.uk.

19CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

25

https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20233/cil_governance_and_funding/536/cil_governance
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20233/cil_governance_and_funding/536/cil_governance


7 Appendix 1 - CIL Annual List of Infrastructure Projects

7.0.1 The Council are required under The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment)
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019, to produce a statement of the infrastructure projects or
types of infrastructure which the Council intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded
by CIL.

7.0.2 This is referred to as the Community Infrastructure Levy List of
Infrastructure Projects and replaces the Regulation 123 list (R123 list).

7.0.3 CIL money collected can only be allocated to and spent on these types of
infrastructure.

Infrastructure Projects funding over £30,001

18+ Adult Education Infrastructure Projects
Green Infrastructure Projects
Leisure Time Activities Infrastructure-

Infrastructure Projects funding of £2,000 and up to £30,000

Education – local initiatives
Health
Economic Development
Community Facilities
Green Infrastructure
Open Space and Leisure

7.0.4 This list will be continually reviewed, tomeet the changing needs and aspirations
of the Borough to support future infrastructure.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202320

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

26

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents


8 Appendix 2 - CIL Governance Framework

21CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

27



Applications for CIL Infrastructure Funding

Conform with:
• Set of principles for applications - Governance Document
• Guidance Notes/Pre-application Criteria
• Application Form - includes Implementation Plan

Initial consideration/scoring of submitted schemes by BC  Officer
Recommendations/comments made by BC Officer

Community 
Projects over 30k

Local Projects between £2k 
and 30k

Finalised List for approval by Cabinet

Draft list of projects to be considered by 
Management Team.

Recommendations 
considered  and approved by 

CIL Spending Panel

Implementation/Spending/Monitoring of CIL

Sign off by BC ManagerSign off by Cabinet

Management Team Scrutiny give opportunity to 
coordinate projects with other spending streams 

from NCC/LEP/Homes England etc.

CIL Spending Panel considers: 
• CIL Annual List of Infrastructure

Projects
• Revised Governance
• Project spend/progress

CIL Officer Statutory Reports
• Annual Infrastructure Funding

Statement
• Parish Annual Spending

Reports

28



9 Appendix 3 - Infrastructure Projects Application Scoring
Criteria

Infrastructure Project Application Form

To view and submit the CIL Funding Application, please use the online form
at: https://west-norfolk.objective.co.uk/portal/cil_folder/cilappsfy/

Scoring Criteria

Any Infrastructure Project Application must meet all criteria below:

Is this project necessary to support local growth?
Has match funding and financial commitment been secured?
Is the project deliverable within 1-5 years?

Each project will be scored on the following:

Evidence of Need - What evidence that local people support the project - maximum
score = 5

Petitions
Support from Local Council (Parish/Town Council) or Community Group (Parish Meeting),
as appropriate
Support from Local Elected Members (Ward Councillors)
Support from Community Groups
Letters of support from new/existing users
Fundraising Initiatives
Support from County Council/Professional Bodies

9.0.1 Finance and Deliverability

Amount of CIL funding requested

Details of proposed expenditure

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying any match funding

1 – 10% = 1 Point
11 - 20% = 2 Points
21-30% = 3 Points
31-40% = 4 Points
41+% = 5 Points

23CIL Governance and Spending_2023 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

29

https://west-norfolk.objective.co.uk/portal/cil_folder/cilappsfy


9.0.2 Project Timescale

All projects are expected to start, within 1 year from the date the CIL Funding is formally
allocated.

9.0.3 Once started, how long the project is expected to take, to be completed:

0 – 6 months = 5 Point
6 – 9 Months = 4 Points
9 – 12 Months = 3 Points
12 – 18 Months = 2 Points
18 Months - 5 Years = 1 Point

The Spending Panel will consider the amount of development within each Parish making
an application, and also how much CIL Infrastructure funding has already been allocated to
that Parish/Ward.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202324

CIL Governance and Spending_2023

30



www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

This Draft document has been produced by the CIL Officer, taking into 
consideration, Spending Panel comments and recommendations from the 
meeting on 16 October and after communication and advice from Internal 
Audit Officers.

Revised Text identified using boxes.

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

DRAFT_v131



Region

11 Introduction

21.1 Statutory Requirements

21.2 What can CIL be spent on

42 What is Infrastructure

63 Governance Arrangements

84 Applying for CIL funds

104.1 Application Essential Requirements

114.2 Consultation Requirements

125 Infrastructure Project Funding Applications

145.1 The Decision Making Process for Infrastructure Projects

166 Delete

176.1 Delete

197 Once the funding decisions have been made

197.1 Project Progress Reports

207.2 Project Completion

207.3 Monitoring and Review

228 Appendix 1 - CIL Annual List of Infrastructure Projects

239 Appendix 2 - CIL Governance Framework

2510 Appendix 3 - Infrastructure Projects Application Scoring Criteria

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_2024

Contents

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 32



1 Introduction

1.0.1 The Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk approved the introduction of
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in December 2016 and started charging on 15
February 2017.

1.0.2 CIL is paid to the Borough Council by developers after their planning permissions
are implemented.

1.0.3 CIL is governed by the CIL Regulations 2010 (amended). In the Borough of King's
Lynn and West Norfolk, CIL is charged on all residential and retail developments, which add
one or more new dwelling(s) or more than 100sqm of floor space.

1.0.4 CIL is charged at a rate per square metre and varies according to land use.

1.0.5 CIL is just one funding stream that can be used, in conjunction with others, to fund
infrastructure projects. Alongside CIL, S106 obligations will still exist, but generally as one-off
agreements to mitigate the impacts of larger developments and to secure on-site developer
requirements, such as the provision of affordable housing. Examples of how infrastructure
projects can be funded can be seen in Figure 1.

1.0.6 Funding Streams

1.0.7 This document details the governance arrangements in place at the Borough Council
of King's Lynn and West Norfolk, for the allocation and spending of CIL.

1.0.8 The original parameters for the governance arrangements of CIL were agreed at
Cabinet on 17 August 2020.

1.0.9 The governance arrangements will be reviewed on an annual basis, to meet the
Corporate Objectives and Priorities, by Cabinet.

1CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v133

adriver
Rectangle



1.0.10 This document is based on the 8 'Appendix 1 - CIL Annual List of Infrastructure
Projects'and is applicable for the financial year 2024

1.0.11 The spending priorities (as aligned to the Corporate Business Plan) will be reviewed
on an annual basis.

1.1 Statutory Requirements

1.1.1 Under CIL, the Borough Council will act as the designated Charging Authority.

1.1.2 As a Charging Authority the Council has an obligation to:

Prepare and publish the CIL Charging Schedule
Determine CIL spend, ensuring it is used to fund the provision, improvement, replacement,
operation or maintenance of infrastructure to support development of its area
Report on the amount of CIL revenue collected, spent and retained each year.

1.1.3 The Council are required under The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment)
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019, to produce a statement of the infrastructure projects or
types of infrastructure which the Council intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded
by CIL.

1.1.4 This is referred to as the Community Infrastructure Levy List of Infrastructure Projects
and replaces the Regulation 123 list (R123 list).

1.1.5 CIL money collected may only be allocated to and spent on these types of
infrastructure.

1.1.6 The Borough Council's Annual List of Infrastructure Projects and Annual Infrastructure
Funding Statement detailing CIL receipts, balances and expenditure for each financial year
c a n b e f o u n d o n t h e C o u n c i l ' s C I L
webpages at https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports.

1.2 What can CIL be spent on

1.2.1 CIL Regulations set the context for the spending of CIL funds on infrastructure. The
regulations encourage the accumulation of CIL funds into a 'pot'.

1.2.2 Unlike other obligations or charges, CIL spending does not need to be directly related
to the donor development and can address infrastructure needs in general across the Borough
Council's administrative area.

How CIL is proportioned and allocated

1.2.3 As per the CIL Regulations and Guidance, CIL is proportioned and allocated using
the following approach:

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_20242

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 34

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports.
adriver_1
Rectangle



5% is retained by the Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk to cover
administrative costs (including consultation on the levy charging schedule, enforcing
CIL, legal costs and reporting on CIL activity)
15%, known as the Neighbourhood Allocation, is established for spending within the
neighbourhood of contributing development (up to a maximum of £100 per existing
Council Tax dwelling). This allocation can either be transferred to the relevant Parish
Council or retained by the Borough Council to be spent on neighbourhood projects where
the development is not in a Parish. This allocation rises to 25% when a Parish has a
Neighbourhood Plan in place.
80%, known as the CIL Infrastructure Fund, is retained by the Borough Council, to
allocate to projects in accordance with the Council's Infrastructure List, which is reviewed
annually, and in line with the agreed CIL Governance arrangements.

For example:

If £1,000 is received it would be distributed as follows:

Where 1% = £10
5% Admin = £50
15% (without Neighbourhood Plan) = £150 or 25% (with Neighbourhood Plan) Parish
Payment = £250
the remaining sum is placed in the CIL Infrastructure fund 80% = £800 or 70% (with
Neighbourhood Plan) = £700

It is very unlikely that CIL will generate enough funds to completely cover the cost of new
infrastructure needed to fully support planned development. As such, there will be competing
demands for this funding. With this in mind, it is important to ensure that there are robust,
accountable and democratic structures in place to ensure the spending of CIL funds are
prioritised in the right way.

1.2.4 The sections that follow set out the Governance Arrangements and approach for
how decisions are made on the prioritisation and spend of the CIL Infrastructure Fund.

3CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v135



2 What is Infrastructure

Definition of Infrastructure

2.0.1 The infrastructure of a country, society, or organization consists of the basic facilities
such as transport, communications, power supplies, and buildings, which enable it to function.

CIL Regulation Key Points

2.0.2 The key points set out by the CIL Regulations and Guidance relating to CIL funding
are:

CIL should be spent on infrastructure including: roads and other transport, schools
and other education, community facilities, health, sport / recreation and open spaces

The infrastructure funded must support the development of the area

CIL can be used to increase the capacity of existing infrastructure or to repair failing
infrastructure, if needed to support development

CIL and Section 106 should not be secured to fund the same infrastructure project
e.g. Social/Affordable Housing

Government Guidance

Government have provided additional information: Extract
from: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy#spending-the-levy:

2.0.3 The levy can be used to fund a wide range of infrastructure, including transport, flood
defences, schools, hospitals, and other health and social care facilities. This definition allows
the levy to be used to fund a very broad range of facilities such as play areas, open spaces,
parks and green spaces, cultural and sports facilities, healthcare facilities, academies and
free schools, district heating schemes and police stations and other community safety facilities.

2.0.4 Local authorities must spend the levy on infrastructure needed to support the
development of their area, and they will decide what infrastructure is needed.

2.0.5 The levy can be used to increase the capacity of existing infrastructure or to repair
failing existing infrastructure, if that is necessary to support development.

2.0.6 Non-CIL Projects

2.0.7 The following applications will not be considered for CIL Funding:

Projects in areas with no development, which will not benefit the wider community or
support new development

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_20244

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 36

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy#spending-the-levy
adriver_2
Rectangle



Improvements to private enterprises/charitable or community facilities, which will not
increase capacity

2.0.8 What is NOT Infrastructure

2.0.9 The following projects will not be considered for CIL Funding, as they do not fall within
the definition of infrastructure to support new development:

The provision of Services -

2.0.10 Service is described in the Oxford English Dictionary as “the action of serving,
helping, or benefiting; conduct tending to the welfare or advantage of another;

2.0.11 Examples of services which will not be considered as infrastructure are:

Payments to individuals/businesses which will not specifically related to new development
Staffing costs
Maintenance on costs

Non_Infrastructure Projects

Projects that do not increase the capacity of a facility/building or structure
Projects that relate to sundry items - miscellaneous small items or works that do not fit
within the definition of infrastructure

5CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v137

adriver_3
Rectangle



3 Governance Arrangements

3.0.1 The estimated annual income of CIL is 1 million pounds.

All projects must:

start within 1 year, from when funding is formally allocated AND be completed
within 5 years

or as stated on the funding application.

3.0.2 In order to aid the organisation, checking and decision making, the Borough Council
has set up a CIL Spending Panel.

CIL Spending Panel

3.0.3 The CIL Spending Panel is formed from elected Councillors and assisted by Officers
and reports to Cabinet.

3.0.4 The CIL Spending Panel:

reviews the funding applications received
makes recommendations for suitable project spending
monitors project spend and progress.

Criteria for Funding Selection

3.0.5 The Spending Panel will review each application and base their decision on the
following:

3.0.6 Project Scoring

filter the projects based on BC Officers' scoring
take into consideration Management Team recommendations
prioritise the projects with the highest scoring;

3.0.7 When there are more project applications, than CIL Funding available, the Spending
Panel will take into consideration:

the amount of development in the relevant area, based on planning application history, to
identify need for infrastructure
the amount of CIL Neighbourhood Parish money retained and unallocated
the amount of CIL Funding already received relating to the area and/or project, to allow
funding to be allocated to areas with less funding

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_20246

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 38

adriver_4
Rectangle

adriver_5
Rectangle



3.0.8 The Panels role in the Governance Framework, is shown in Appendix 2 - 9 'Appendix
2 - CIL Governance Framework'

3.0.9 The current list of eligible spending is detailed in section 5, and may change in
subsequent years.

3.0.10 Cabinet will review and decide on amended priorities, as appropriate, on an annual
basis.

7CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v139



4 Applying for CIL funds

4.0.1 Annually, the Borough Council will publicise the amount of CIL funding collected.

4.0.2 The Council will encourage the submission of Expression of Interest Forms, requesting
CIL funding.

4.0.3 Key internal and external stakeholders responsible for delivering the infrastructure
identified in the Council's Infrastructure List will receive direct notification of the opportunity
to request CIL funding.

4.0.4 The stakeholders automatically notified will be:

Internal Departments within BCKLWN
Norfolk County Council
Parish and Town Councils within the Borough
All BCKLWN Councillors

4.0.5 Information about the opportunity will also be available on the Council's website.

4.0.6 The allocation of these funds will be made through an 'Expression of Interest' process.

4.0.7 A diagrammatic summary of the governance framework for CIL is set out in Appendix
2, which shows the spending and reporting arrangements that are in place.

4.0.8 Expression of Interests will be made on a standard online template, issued by the
Borough Council.

4.0.9 The application form will request key information about the project, including:

1. Description and details of the project
2. Purpose of the project and its benefit to the community
3. Financial details:

Expected expenditure which must include:

a. summary of proposed costs
b. details of quotes, to demonstrate that the funding request has been researched
c. Amount of CIL funding requested - £
d. Details of any match funding

4. Any other supporting information e.g. Project Report and Timescales.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_20248

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 40



The Borough will set a timescale for the submission of applications, which will be
published on our webpages.

The decision making process, as detailed in Appendix 2, will commence after the application
deadline has ended, to:

ensure that all projects are reviewed fairly and transparently
give each project the same opportunity for funding

BCKLWN Linked Funding Applications

To ensure transparency, any application made on behalf of the BCKLWN or subsidiary
organisation, will be passed to the Cabinet for scrutiny as part of the decision making process.
This will apply to all funding applications from any project group.

9CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v141



4.1 Application Essential Requirements

Bodies applying for funds, will need to demonstrate that they are properly constituted,
and reflect appropriate national policies e.g. Equality, Safe Guarding andDiscrimination.

4.1.1 It is expected that project sustainability has been considered, prior to applying for
funding, to ensure the continued success of the project on completion.

4.1.2 In order for a project to be considered for CIL funding, the following eligibility
criteria needs to be met:

The project is clearly defined as 'Infrastructure',as per the CIL Regulations; and

The Application Form has been completed satisfactorily; and
The project must meet at least one of the criteria, as detailed in the Annual Infrastructure
List; and
The organisation must have the legal right to carry out the proposed project; and
The proposed projectwill not provide a financial advantage, to benefit a commercial
or private business.

The Project must:

commence within 1 year of being allocated CIL; AND be completed within 5 years.

Applications must NOT include a schedule of ongoing costs, to maintain the project,
once it has been completed.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202410

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 42



4.2 Consultation Requirements

4.2.1 As part of the application process, it is essential to consult with local community
groups.

4.2.2 Areas in the Borough with a Local Council (Town or Parish Council):

Applicationsmust be made in liaison with the relevant Local Council, this is to ensure:

that the project meets the communities needs,
they are given the opportunity to offer their support to the project,
may provide an opportunity of match funding from either the Parish Precept or CIL Parish
payment, where appropriate.

4.2.3 Unparished areas within the Borough:

Where no Local Council is present, it would be beneficial for applicants to liaise with
the local community group, usually identified as 'Parish Meeting'.
Where there is no community group, applicants are advised to seek support from
their local elected member(s).

4.2.4 Applicants may also wish to liaise with local elected members.

4.2.5 Details of local councils and elected members can be found on the BCKLWN
Democratic Services website.

11CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v143



5 Infrastructure Project Funding Applications

5.0.1 50% of the CIL Infrastructure Funds will be allocated to projects requesting funding
of over £30,001

5.0.2 Projects over £30k will be selected, by in line with the CIL Governance arrangements,
with more weight given to areas with significant development taking place.

5.0.3 Allocations for spending on infrastructure, will be made to projects in accordance
with the Council's adopted CIL Infrastructure List.

These Projects must:

commence within 1 year of being allocated CIL
and be completed within 5 years.

5.0.4 The Infrastructure list will be reviewed annually and updated to reflect the changing
needs within the Borough.

The current list of Infrastructure Projects eligible for funding over £30k,
are:

18+ Adult Education Infrastructure Projects

To support the development of skills for adults of all ages, which may include: volunteer
run projects to allow people to gain new skills, knowledge and experience.

Green Infrastructure Projects

Projects relating to public open spaces such as new or improved footpaths and cycleways
to support new development..

Installation & improvement of public play areas and equipment

Open spaces used for recreation and education, to support environmental initiatives.
Improvement of habitats for wildlife and nature, to alleviate the effects of new
development.
Environmental protection such as flood defence or absorption of air pollution.

Leisure Time Activities Infrastructure-

Infrastructure projects, to support accessible leisure time activities such as: new
facilities, improvement of existing facilities or upgrade of facilities to enable an increase of
usage, to support new development of an area., which may include; health & well-being
schemes to encourage physical activity and playstreet initiatives.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202412

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 44

adriver_6
Rectangle

adriver_7
Rectangle



Projects run by community/voluntary groups including Local Councils, to promote social
inclusion.

Active living projects; to increase walking, cycling and sustainable transport.

The Project selection criteria are in line with the BoroughCouncils Corporate Business
Plan.

The Project Criteria meet the Corporate priorities and objectives:

5.0.5 Promote growth and prosperity to benefit West Norfolk - Encourage housing
development and infrastructure that meets local need and promote West Norfolk as a
destination.

5.0.6 Protect our environment - To create a cleaner, greener, and better protected West
Norfolk by considering environmental issues.

Question 1

Do you want to apply for CIL Infrastructure Project Funding?

5.0.7 If you wish to apply for CIL Project Funding, please click on the link below and
it will take you to the online form.

5.0.8 CIL Online Application Forms

13CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v145

https://west-norfolk.objective.co.uk/portal/cil_folder/cilappsfy
adriver_8
Rectangle



5.1 The Decision Making Process for Infrastructure Projects

5.1.1 Once the Project Application Forms, requesting CIL funding, have been validated by
a Council Officer, initial scoring of the projects will then take place.

5.1.2 The factors that these Projects will be assessed against include:

evidence of Local Council, Community meeting and elected member(s) support

evidence to demonstrate community need and support
evidence to demonstrate a commitment to the project, including details of match funding
project timescales and deliverability
details of expenditure, how the money will be spent

details of new and proposed development, in the project area

5.1.3 Projects will be viewed favourably if they lever in other funds that wouldn't otherwise
be available, particularly where those funds may not be available in future years.

5.1.4 Ideally, bids should include significant sums of match funding

5.1.5 The Application forms, scoring sheets and officer comments, will then be taken to
the BCKLWN Management Team to review and make a formal recommendation.

5.1.6 The Management Team are required to:

consider whether there could be links to other areas of corporate or partner spending
e.g. spending on habitats (Natura 2000 sites) mitigation works.
make recommendations on which projects they consider, eligible for CIL funding

5.1.7 At this stage, the Council Officer will produce a list of all projects received, which will
be published as an agenda item, for the CIL Spending Review Meeting.

5.1.8 CIL Spending Panel - Review Meeting

5.1.9 All Councillors, including Portfolio Holders, will be notified of when the CIL Spending
Review Meeting will take place.

5.1.10 Any elected member may attend the CIL Spending Review meeting under Standing
Order 34.

5.1.11 The recommendations will be reviewed, by the CIL Spending Panel.

5.1.12 The CIL Spending Panel is required to:

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202414

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 46

adriver_9
Rectangle



reach a balanced judgement over which projects to select
agree on which projects will receive CIL funding

5.1.13 CIL payments up to £50,000 will then be signed off by a Senior Council Manager.

Applications over £50k

5.1.14 All project applications over £50k must be agreed by Cabinet, the application
stakeholders will be informed and funds will be allocated.

5.1.15 CIL payments up to £1,000,000 will then be signed off by a senior Council Officer.

5.1.16 CIL will be paid on completion of the project.

15CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v147

adriver_10
Rectangle



6 Delete

6.0.1 50% of the CIL Funds will be allocated to Infrastructure Projects, requesting funds
of a value between £2,000 and £30,000.

6.0.2 Projects up to £30k will be selected, by in line with the CIL Governance
arrangements, with more weight given to areas with significant match funding.

6.0.3 Allocations for spending on infrastructure, will be made to projects in accordance
with the Council's adopted CIL Infrastructure List.

6.0.4 The Infrastructure list will be reviewed annually and updated to reflect the changing
needs within the Borough.

These Projects:

must commence within 1 year of being allocated CIL
and must be completed within 5 years.

The current list of Infrastructure Projects eligible for funding up to £30k
are:

Education - Local Initiatives

To support voluntary/community projects

Health

To support NHS & voluntary services
Support & increase wellbeing services

Economic Development

To benefit the local area/wider community

Community Facilities - This may include public buildings/recreation areas:

To support voluntary/community groups
Increase facility capacity/repair existing infrastructure

Green Infrastructure

To reduce carbon emissions
Support & protect biodiversity - wildlife friendly sites

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202416

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 48

adriver_11
Rectangle



Open Space and Leisure

Installation & improvement of public play areas and equipment
Improvement of open spaces
Support voluntary/community leisure facilities

CIL will be paid on completion of the project.

These Projects are in line with the Borough Councils Corporate Business Plan.

The Project Criteria meet the Corporate priorities and objectives:

Education - Improving social mobility and inclusion to work with partners to improve
education attainment levels and the skills of local people.
Health - Improving social mobility and inclusion by continuing to assist our residents to
maximise their opportunities by accessing the support and services they are entitled to.
Economic Development - Delivering growth in the economy and with local housing
to promote the borough as a vibrant place in which to live, to do business and as a
leading visitor and cultural destination.
Community Facilities - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a
positive difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe
public places and communities.
Green Infrastructure- Helping to improve the health and well being of our communities
by supporting our local communities to be healthy and more active
Open Space and Leisure - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a
positive difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe
public places and communities and help to improve the health and well being of our
communities

Do you want to apply for CIL Infrastructure Project Funding?

If you wish to apply for the CIL Project Funding , please click on the link below
and it will take you to the online form.

CIL Online Application Form

6.1 Delete

6.1.1 Once the Infrastructure Project Application Forms, requesting CIL funding, have been
validated by a Council Officer, initial scoring of the projects will then take place.

6.1.2 The factors that projects will be assessed against include:

17CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v149

http://west-norfolk.objective.co.uk/portal/cil_folder/cilappsfy
adriver_12
Rectangle



details of expenditure, how the money will be spent
evidence of Local Council, Community meeting and elected member(s) support
evidence to demonstrate community need and support
evidence to demonstrate a commitment (financial or otherwise) to the project including
details of match funding
project timescales

6.1.3 Short term projects will be looked upon favourably, especially if the CIL can be
allocated and spent within the same financial year.

6.1.4 A Council Officer undertaking the initial scoring of the project will make a
recommendation, based on the scoring criteria.

6.1.5 At this stage, the Council Officer will produce a list of all projects received, which will
be published as an agenda item, for the CIL Spending Review Meeting.

6.1.6 All Councillors, including Portfolio Holders, will be notified of when the CIL Spending
Review Meeting will take place.

6.1.7 Any elected member may attend the CIL Spending Review meeting under Standing
Order 34.

6.1.8 The recommendations will be reviewed, by the CIL Spending Panel.

6.1.9 The CIL Spending Panel is required to:

reach a balanced judgement over which projects to select
agree on which projects will receive CIL funding

6.1.10 CIL payments up to £30,000 will then be signed off by a Senior Council Manager.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202418

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 50

adriver_13
Rectangle



7 Once the funding decisions have been made

7.0.1 Once funding decisions have been made, in line with the CIL Governance process,
all applicants will be notified of the outcome.

7.0.2 Successful applications will be sent, via email, a Funding Offer Letter and formal
legal agreement.

7.0.3 The completed Agreement Form must include 2 signatories.

7.0.4 To enable funding to be formally allocated to the project, the signed agreementmust
be returned and formally acknowledged by the Borough Council.

7.0.5 Where an agreement has not been returned, the funding offer will be withdrawn and
the sum reallocated as part of the next round of applications.

7.0.6 Successful applicants of CIL funding will be expected to maintain communication
with the Borough Council, on the progress of their project, after a decision has been made
to provide funding.

7.1 Project Progress Reports

7.1.1 We require the following information, during the progress of the project, which
must include:

1. Notification when the project starts:
A project may be started in several ways, such as the commencement of physical works,
starting the tender process or securing contracts relating to the project.

2. An annual report must be submitted at the end of each financial year, and no later
than 01 May:
The annual report will need to provide information on the progress of each scheme that
funding has been allocated to, until such time that the project is completed.

3. Regular updates on the progress of the project, until it is completed.
4. Notification of potential delays.

As funding is allocated based on the scoring of project timescales, it is important to let
us know if the project is not expected to be completed as stated on the application. If
the project is going to take longer, there is a requirement to request a variation to the
original timescale. Any requests will be reviewed by the CIL Spending Panel.

7.1.2 The requirement to submit this information, forms part of the agreement that the
successful applicant is required to sign between themselves and the Borough Council of
King's Lynn and West Norfolk.

19CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v151

adriver_14
Rectangle



7.1.3 If an applicant does not spend CIL money within five years of receipt, or does
not spend it as agreed then the Borough Council may require the applicant to repay
some or all of those funds.

7.2 Project Completion

7.2.1 Where funding has been allocated 'in principle' or where staged payments are agreed,
the scheme applicant will be expected to provide information to justify funding being
transferred. The evidence of completion must include:

Original Invoices- to demonstrate expenditure
Photographs of completed project - to demonstrate completion and also for publicity
purposes
In some cases, to enable the project to progress, planning permission may be required.
If this is the case, other relevant evidence may include:
Written Statement of completion
Planning Approval/Building Control Completion Notices - to demonstrate adherence to
statutory obligations

7.2.2 Applicants should continue to provide information, until the scheme has been
completed and all CIL funding has been spent.

7.3 Monitoring and Review

7.3.1 The Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk is committed to ensuring the
use of CIL is open and transparent.

List of CIL Funded Projects

The Borough Council will publish a list of all projects that have been allocated CIL funding
on our website.

Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement

In line with the CIL Regulations, as amended in September 2019, the Borough Council will
publish an Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement.

This report will provide details of CIL and also S106:

receipts
balances
expenditure
allocations.
will be published on our website annually, for each financial year, no later than 31
December.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202420

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 52



7.3.2 The published reports can be found on the CIL Financial Reports webpages
at:https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports

Annual List of Infrastructure Projects

7.3.3 The Council are required under The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment)
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019, to produce a statement of the infrastructure projects or
types of infrastructure which the Council intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded
by CIL.

7.3.4 This is referred to as the Community Infrastructure Levy 8 'Appendix 1 - CIL Annual
List of Infrastructure Projects' and replaces the Regulation 123 list (R123 list).

7.3.5 CIL money collected can only be allocated to and spent on these types of
infrastructure.

The CIL Spending Panel

7.3.6 The CIL Spending Panel will:

review the uptake of projects within the project categories, after each application deadline
has been met
monitor the operation and implementation of CIL funding
review the List of Infrastructure Projects, on an annual basis
recommend amendments to the project selection criteria
produce a Draft List of Infrastructure Projects

7.3.7 Recommendations from the CIL Spending Panel, will then go forward to Cabinet.

Cabinet

7.3.8 Cabinet will:

review the recommendations
approve the Annual List of Infrastructure Projects,

7.3.9 The Annual List of Infrastructure Projects will be published on the CIL Governance
and Funding webpages.

7.3.10 If you have any questions about this guidance, or CIL generally, please contact the
Borough Council's CIL Monitoring and Compliance Officer at CIL@west-norfolk.gov.uk.

21CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v153

https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20233/cil_governance_and_funding/536/cil_governance
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20233/cil_governance_and_funding/536/cil_governance
adriver_15
Rectangle



8 Appendix 1 - CIL Annual List of Infrastructure Projects

8.0.1 The Council are required under The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment)
(England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019, to produce a statement of the infrastructure projects or
types of infrastructure which the Council intends will be, or may be, wholly or partly funded
by CIL.

8.0.2 This is referred to as the Community Infrastructure Levy List of
Infrastructure Projects and replaces the Regulation 123 list (R123 list).

8.0.3 CIL money collected can only be allocated to and spent on these types of
infrastructure.

Green Infrastructure Projects

Projects relating to public open spaces such as new or improved footpaths and cycleways
to support new development
Installation & improvement of public play areas and equipment
Open spaces used for education, to support environmental initiatives.
Improvement of habitats for wildlife and nature, to alleviate the effects of new
development.
Environmental services such as flood defence or absorption of air pollution.

Leisure Time Activities Infrastructure-

Infrastructure projects, to support accessible leisure time activities such as new facilities,
improvement of existing facilities or upgrade of facilities to enable an increase of usage,
to support new development of an area.

8.0.4 This list will be continually reviewed, tomeet the changing needs and aspirations
of the Borough to support future infrastructure.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202422

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 54

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2019/9780111187449/contents
adriver_16
Rectangle



9 Appendix 2 - CIL Governance Framework

23CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v155



DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 56

adriver_17
Rectangle



10 Appendix 3 - Infrastructure Projects Application Scoring
Criteria

Infrastructure Project Application Form

To view and submit the CIL Funding Application, please use the online form
at: https://west-norfolk.objective.co.uk/portal/cil_folder/cilappsfy/

Scoring Criteria

10.0.1 There is amaximum of 15 points available based on the information provided.

Any Infrastructure Project Application must meet all criteria below:

Is this project necessary to support local growth?
Has match funding and financial commitment been secured?
Is the project deliverable within 1-5 years?

Each project will be scored on the following:

Evidence of Need - What evidence that local people support the project - Maximum 5
points

Petitions
Support from Local Council (Parish/Town Council) or Community Group (Parish Meeting),
as appropriate
Support from Local Elected Members (Ward Councillors)
Support from Community Groups
Letters of support from new/existing users
Fundraising Initiatives
Support from County Council/Professional Bodies

10.0.2 Finance and Deliverability

Amount of CIL funding requested

Details of proposed expenditure

Quotes must be submitted - 1 quote for funding up to £5k and 3 quoted for project
funding over £5k

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying any match funding -maximum
5 points:

0 = 0 Points

25CIL Governance and Spending_2024 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v157

https://west-norfolk.objective.co.uk/portal/cil_folder/cilappsfy
adriver_18
Rectangle

adriver_19
Rectangle

adriver_20
Rectangle



1% - 20% = 1 Point
21% - 40% = 2 Points
41% - 60% = 3 Points
61% - 80%= 4 Points
80+% = 5 Points

10.0.3 Project Timescale

All projects are expected to start, within 1 year from the date the CIL Funding is formally
allocated.

10.0.4 Once started, how long the project is expected to take, to be completed -
maximum 5 points:

0 – 6 months = 5 Point
6 – 9 Months = 4 Points
9 – 12 Months = 3 Points
12 – 18 Months = 2 Points
18 Months - 5 Years = 1 Point

The Spending Panel will consider the amount of development within each Parish making
an application, and also how much CIL Infrastructure funding has already been allocated to
that Parish/Ward.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Governance and Spending_202426

CIL Governance and Spending_2024

DRAFT_V1

DRAFT_v1 58

adriver_21
Rectangle

adriver_22
Rectangle



Online CIL Application Form _Governance Document 2023 

The CIL Applications are based on the amount of funding you wish to apply for, 

 not the overall cost of the project. 

How much CIL Infrastructure Funding do you wish to apply for? 

(please select one answer) 

Infrastructure Project over £30,001 .............................................................. 

Infrastructure Project between £2,000 and £30,000 .............................................. 

Q1 - Amount of CIL funding requested 

Q2 - Name of Organisation submitting this request 

Project Details 
Please provide details of the project. 

Q3 - Project Name/Title 

Q4 - Brief description of the project: 

Summary of Expenditure 
Q5 - Please provide any/all information to demonstrate research and a summary of the project 

proposal including: 

• Quotes for work/equipment

• Break down of costings

• Programme of spending

• Any other relevant information

Match Funding 
Q6 - Please ensure you include details of all match funding as this will affect the overall scoring of 

your project. 

Details of match funding which may include: 

• Local Council Precepts

• CIL Local Council Payments allocated to the project (excluding CIL

Infrastructure Applications)

• External Funding and Grants

• Fundraising

Project timescale 
Q7 - Please indicate the approximate start date and timescale for completion of this project. 

Shorter term projects will be looked upon more favourably. 

CIL Payments are made on completion of the project. 

59

Agenda Item 13



Community Benefit 

Q8 - Briefly explain how this project will benefit the local community. 

Local Support 

Q9 - What evidence do you have that local people support your project? 

• Have you liaised with your Local Council/Community Meeting Group?

• Have you liaised with other user/community groups?

• Have you contacted your local elected members?

• Do you have any letters of support?

NCC Supporting Letter 

Q10 - If the project is highways or education related, do you have a letter of support from the 

relevant NCC department? (please attach a copy of the letter to this application form) 

(please select one answer) 

Yes ...........................................................  No ............................................................ 

Upload 
Q11 - Please upload any supporting documents as required. 

Details to upload may include: 

• Project Plan

• Letters of Support from NCC/Parish

• Plans

• Photographs

Sensitive Information including Quotes & Tenders will not be viewable to the public. 

Contact Details 
Q12 - Please provide details of the person to contact in relation to this application. 
Please include: 

Name 

Email Address 

Phone Number 

Contact details will not be viewable to the public under GPDR 

The online details will also show - Project Progress/completion/payments made 

60



CIL Application Form 2024_1

Application Questions

The CIL Applications are based on the amount of funding youwish to applying for, not
the overall cost of the project.

Please ensure that you are aware of any relevant consents including Listed Building
and Planning Permissions, prior to submitting your application.

Project Details
Amount Requested - £

Project Name/Title

Name of Organisation submitting this request

1CIL Application Form 2024_1 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V161



Brief description of the project:

What % have you matched against the sums requested e.g. Project Total £4k - Requested
£2k + Match Funded £2K = 100% Matchfunding

Howmuch match funding have you secured for this project? Please tick the relevant
box:
(please select one answer)

No Matchfunding ..............................................................................................................

1% - 20% .........................................................................................................................

21% - 40% .......................................................................................................................

41% - 60% .......................................................................................................................

61% - 80% .......................................................................................................................

81%+ ................................................................................................................................

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Application Form 2024_12

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V1 62

adriver_23
Rectangle



Please tick the relevant boxes to show the types of match funding you have secured for
this project:

(please select all that apply)

Parish Precepts ................................................................................................................

CIL Neighbourhood Parish Funds ....................................................................................

Community Grants ...........................................................................................................

Internal Funding ...............................................................................................................

Local Funding including Fundraising ...............................................................................

External/National Grants ..................................................................................................

Other ................................................................................................................................

3CIL Application Form 2024_1 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V163

adriver_24
Rectangle



Please ensure you include details of all match funding as this will affect the overall scoring
of your project.

Evidence must be submitted to demonstrate match funding has been secured.

Please provide a brief summary of thematch funding, using the headings listed above:

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Application Form 2024_14

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V1 64

adriver_25
Rectangle



Local & Community Support
What evidence of Local and Community Support do you have - please tick the boxes
below that are relevant.
(please select all that apply)

Parish Council Support ....................................................................................................

Borough Councillor(s) ......................................................................................................

Norfolk County Councillor(s) ............................................................................................

Questionnaire/Survey Results .........................................................................................

Community/User Groups .................................................................................................

Local Business(es) ...........................................................................................................

Community/Resident(s) Feedback (social media/letters) ................................................

Evidence must be submitted to demonstrate the Local Support you have for this project.

Briefly provide details of the Local Support:

Details of Local Support:

5CIL Application Form 2024_1 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V165

adriver_26
Rectangle



Briefly explain how this project will benefit the local community.

Community Benefit

PLEASE NOTE

All Projects MUST:

start within 1 year from when funds are formally allocated
and be completed within 5 years.

CIL Payments are made on completion of the project.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Application Form 2024_16

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V1 66



Please provide details of the approximate start date and timescale(s) for completion
of this project.

How long will you project take to complete, once started?
(please select one answer)

0 - 6 Mnths .......................................................................................................................

6 - 9 Mnths .......................................................................................................................

9 - 12 Mnths .....................................................................................................................

12 - 18 Mnths ...................................................................................................................

18 Mnths - 5 Years ...........................................................................................................

7CIL Application Form 2024_1 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V167

adriver_27
Rectangle



Please provide information to demonstrate research and a summary of the project proposal.

Please tick the relevant boxes, showing the types of evidence you have provided to
show expenditure and research for this project.
(please select all that apply)

Quotes must be provided - 1 Quote (£2k up to £5k) OR 3 Quotes (£5k+) ......................

Project Proposal(s) ..........................................................................................................

Project Plans/Drawings ....................................................................................................

Supporting Documents ....................................................................................................

Financial Summary ..........................................................................................................

Research Documents ......................................................................................................

Please provide a brief summary of the project proposal, to support evidence submitted.

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Application Form 2024_18

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V1 68

adriver_28
Rectangle



You MUST submit quotes and evidence of local support, to make your application valid.

Please tick the boxes below, providing details of evidence you have supplied/or intend
to submit prior to the closure of application period.
(please select all that apply)

Evidence of Expenditure - sensitive information including quotes, financial information (this
information will not be made public) .................................................................................

Evidence of Local Support ...............................................................................................

Project Plans/Photographs ..............................................................................................

Questionnaire/Survey Results .........................................................................................

Other supporting information ...........................................................................................

County Council Highways Letter (if relevant) ...................................................................

Please upload your supporting documents.

All CIL Correspondence will be sent via email, to the addressee(s).

Please notify us if the email address needs to be changed after the application period has
closed.

Email Address

9CIL Application Form 2024_1 www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V169

adriver_29
Rectangle



Please insert the postal address, which will be used for the Payment Notices.

Postal Address - For Payment Notices:

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk CIL Application Form 2024_110

CIL Application Form 2024_1

DRAFT_v1

DRAFT_V1 70


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of interest
	12 Review of CIL Governance & Spending Document
	1 Introduction
	1.1 Statutory Requirements
	1.2 What can CIL be spent on

	2 Governance Arrangements
	3 Applying for CIL funds
	3.1 Application Essential Requirements
	3.2 Consultation Requirements

	4 Infrastructure Project Funding Allocation - over £30,001
	4.1 The Decision Making Process for Infrastructure Projects over £30k

	5 Infrastructure Project Funding Allocation  between £2,000 and £30,000
	5.1 The Decision Making Process for Infrastructure Projects between £2,000 and £30,000

	6 Once the funding decisions have been made
	6.1 Project Progress Reports
	6.2 Project Completion
	6.3 Monitoring and Review

	7 Appendix 1 - CIL Annual List of Infrastructure Projects
	8 Appendix 2 - CIL Governance Framework
	9 Appendix  3 -   Infrastructure Projects Application Scoring Criteria
	Draft CIL Governance and Spending Document 2024
	1 Introduction
	1.1 Statutory Requirements
	1.2 What can CIL be spent on

	2 What is Infrastructure
	3 Governance Arrangements
	4 Applying for CIL funds
	4.1 Application Essential Requirements
	4.2 Consultation Requirements

	5 Infrastructure Project Funding Applications
	5.1 The Decision Making Process for Infrastructure Projects

	6 Delete
	6.1 Delete

	7 Once the funding decisions have been made
	7.1 Project Progress Reports
	7.2 Project Completion
	7.3 Monitoring and Review

	8 Appendix 1 - CIL Annual List of Infrastructure Projects
	9 Appendix 2 - CIL Governance Framework
	10 Appendix  3 -   Infrastructure Projects Application Scoring Criteria


	13 Review of CIL Funding Application Form
	Draft CIL Application Form 2024
	CIL Application Form 2024_1





